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RFP NO. 14-2748V
TO BE OPENED: March 25, 2014
TITLE: Electronic Permitting, Audit, Registration, and Tax (ePart) System 
ADDENDUM NO. 2
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 2
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,
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Rick Dorvall
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP #14-2748V

	1. 
	N/A
	Appendix G
	Q. CVIEW Interfaces:  Does the State currently have a vendor that is used to provide access to CVIEW that the respondent bidders are expected to use, or can an alternative CVIEW solution be proposed? 

Response: The respondent bidders are expected to use their own certified CVIEW solution

	2. 
	N/A
	Appendix G
	Q. External Interfaces:  Are there any other external interfaces to consider?  For example:  Batch upload for Polk, or other vehicle data, etc.

Response: Vendor will only be expected to provide interfaces specified in the RFP interface requirements.

	3. 
	N/A
	Appendix G
	Q. Internal Interfaces:  Are there any other internal interfaces to consider?  For example:  Document capture/storage/management/retrieval

Response: The only interface and functionality expected are those outlined in the RFP requirements.

	4. 
	
	Appendix E Functional Requirements
	Q. How many IFTA and IRP internal & external users will be using the system?

Response: Currently, there are 199 Internal Users and 3617 External Users.  MDT expects continued growth in users in the coming years.

	5. 
	
	Appendix E
	Q. Do the external users will have Admin functionality?

Response: No

	6. 
	R51
	Appendix E 
	Q. “Allow internal users to see what the Motor Carriers see”  

Does this requirement refer to co-browse functionality for resolving any issues in real-time or a dual user interface for internal users?

Response: MDT needs to have the ability to identify any issues a user may have and duplicate what the user is seeing to help troubleshoot user issues.

	7. 
	
	Appendix G
	Q. SAFER version provided in the Appendix G is 9.2. But when we visit the website the latest version available is 8.1. Can we get the SAFER IDC V9.2 document?

Response: The SAFER ICD V9.2 document will be provided as another attachment to the RFP.  See Interface Control Document posted as a separate pdf with this Q&A.

	8. 
	55
	Appendix H
	Q. IRP and FTS fields are provided. Can we get the IFTA fields also?

Response: The FTS fields provided on page 55 of appendix H are the IFTA fields required for Process #14 on page 15 of appendix H.

	9. 
	
	Appendix E
	Q. How the integration with the Montana Interactive is envisioned? Should the user be taken to the portal or should the payment information be sent using the web service operations? If taken to the portal, are there any SSO requirements?

Response: Either method can be accomplished.  The method will be discussed in further detail with the successful vendor to choose the best option.  SSO does not have to be part of using the State of Montana payment engine.  This may be required for allowing the consumer to store and manage payment types.

	10. 
	
	General
	Q. Does the budget include licensing + implementation + hosting + initial support?

Response: As stated in Section 3.1.2.1, the anticipated cost range cited is for system implementation which would include licensing, implementation, hosting, and initial support.  Further, sections 5.2.1.2.1 and 5.2.1.2.2 outlines the cost proposal requirements for the configuration and implementation, and operations and maintenance, respectively.

	11. 
	
	General
	Q. How many DOT office locations for Motor Carrier Walk-ins?  How many users per location?

Response: Motor Carriers are able to be assisted at the MDT Headquarters Office and any of the 11 District or Area offices locations, also at 15 scale locations including the joint Port-of-Entry Montana has with Wyoming and Alberta. MCS also has 34 passenger cars/pickups, 3 vans, and 1 trailer used for mobile enforcement in which permits are issued. The systems need to have the functionality for unlimited locations and unlimited users at each location.

	12. 
	
	General
	Q. Data Import details: What is the data volume to be imported into the system?

Response: The following are system volume estimates of the current hosted solution, which is dependent on its architecture:

Common Account (An umbrella system which ties information together between various modules) – 85 MB

Permitting System – 3.2 GB

Pre-View (current vendor’s CVIEW) – 342 MB

Registration System - 750 MB

Tax System - 1.0 GB

The actual data volumes in the new solution will be highly dependent on the system architecture.

	13. 
	
	General
	Q. Can you provide additional details on total number of records per system to be imported? 

Response: A record count is dependent on the solution architecture.  Therefore, it is difficult to provide a practical answer.

	14. 
	
	General
	Q. How many years of Historical Data is required to be imported?

Response: Five years plus the current year’s data will be imported.

	15. 
	
	General
	Q. Does the state require a big bang deployment or a phased approach?

Response: The state does not have a preference.  However, regardless of approach, the solution must be fully operational by July 1, 2016.

	16. 
	
	General
	Q. Is the current data quality sufficient or the State assumes there needs to be data cleansing? Please provide more details.

Response: MDT is working on data cleanup, but anticipates there will be additional cleanup to be done prior to implementation.

	17. 
	
	General
	Q. What is the expected date to Production?

Response: The mandatory date to have a fully operational system in place is July 1, 2016.  MDT would welcome an earlier production date based on a mutually agreed implementation schedule.

	18. 
	
	General
	Q. What is the initial duration (in years) of the Post Production Support & Maintenance services? What is the interval of support contract renewal?

Response: The initial maintenance and support period will be one (1) year immediately following the implementation of the proposed solution and acceptance by MDT.  Subsequent maintenance and support agreements will be entered into annually or bi-annually at the mutual agreement of all parties.

	19. 
	
	General
	Q. How many State SMEs and other resources assigned in a full time capacity throughout the implementation phase?

Response: At a minimum the state envisions three SME’s assigned full time to the project.  Additional assignments will be made as warranted.

	20. 
	
	General
	Q. Is there a technology and/or operating environment preference? e.g.: Windows OS (which versions), Linux, Apple, Android. Browsers: IE, Firefox. MS Office, Google docs; DotNet or Java, etc.

Response: Please refer to section 3.2.5 (Technical Requirements) and 3.2.6 (State and MDT Environment) for complete technical requirements.

	21. 
	 
	General
	Q.  Would MDT be open to implementing the new permit system prior to the implementation of the other systems? 

Response: MDT is open to any vendor proposed implementation approach as long as there is a fully operational system in place on or before July 1, 2016.

	22. 
	 
	General
	Q.  Does MDT issue OS/OW permits for travel on non-state maintained roads? 

Response: Yes, MDT issues permits for movement on all public roadways.

	23. 
	 
	General
	Q 1:  Does MDT have routable GIS data to use for this project? 

Q 2:  If MDT does NOT have routable GIS data to use for this project will MDT allow the use of a commercial routing database (TomTom)?

Response: A routing solution is not a requirement outlined in the RFP.  Therefore, these two questions related to routable data are not applicable to the RFP.

	24. 
	 
	General
	Q.  Does MDT envision allowing self-issue for routable permits with this system? 

Response: A routing solution is not a requirement outlined in the RFP.  Therefore, this question about routable permits is not applicable to the RFP.

	25. 
	 
	General
	Q.  Does MDT wish for the permit system to integrate with the Department’s live load analysis system(s)? 

Response: Integration with a live load analysis system is not a requirement of this RFP and is therefore not applicable to this RFP.

	26. 
	 
	General
	Q.  Does MDT wish to utilize automated routing for Western Regional permits?  

Response: Automated routing is not a requirement of this RFP.  Therefore, automated routing for Western Regional permits is not applicable to this RFP.

	27. 
	Att E 

Lines 25, 35, 61, 84, 85 (No page numbers on spreadsheet)
	Att E Items R19, R29, R55, R78, R79 
	RFP:  Not quoted as this question applies to multiple responses as noted in the “Section Number” column of this form.

Q.  Does the Montana Interactive Payment portal support all payment types required in the RFP? 

Response: The State of Montana payment engine supports the following payment types – eCheck (ACH), credit cards and debit cards, including American Express, Master Card, and VISA.

If multiple payments types need to be recorded as a single transaction, the flow and functionality will need to be determined with the selected vendor.

	28. 
	Att E 

Line 61 (No page numbers on spreadsheet)
	Att E R55
	RFP:  “System must communicate with Montana Interactive Payment Portal.”
Q 1.  Will the application need to transfer User Interface (UI) control to the Montana Interactive payment portal for payment processing?

Q 2.  If yes, is payment information (i.e. credit card, billing addresses, CCVs, etc.) collected directly in the Montana Interactive payment portal; or

Q 3.  Does payment information need to be passed via web services?

Q 4.  Can MDT explain how this interface is to work?

Response: The State of Montana payment engine offers two methods for collecting and processing payment information.

Method One – the Common Checkout Pages (CCP) can collect all information from the consumer and perform the payment processing where the vendor solution would only need to send the order information to CCP.  The vendor solution would initiate the connection to CCP and then redirect the consumer to CCP to collect payment information and perform the remainder of the checkout.  Multiple payment types cannot be used for this option.

Method Two – the vendor solution could be built to call the State of Montana payment engine directly using web services passing the order and customer information or Montana Interactive could build a custom interface to the payment engine to handle the shopping cart concept, storing and retrieving of payment options and allowing multiple payment options as a single transaction.  This would be the preferred approach.

	29. 
	Att E 

Lines 82, 93, 94, 110, 134, 

 (No page numbers on spreadsheet
	R76, R87, R88, R104, R128, 
	RFP:  Not quoted as this question applies to multiple responses as noted in the “Section Number” column of this form.

Q.  Does the Montana Interactive payment portal support the storage and management of payment devices entered by the user? 

Response: Yes, but the consumer interface would need to be customized to fit the requirements for this project.

	30. 
	Att E Line 7 (No page numbers on spreadsheet)
	Att E R1
	RFP:  “R1 During log on, deny Motor Carrier all online operations (including successful log on) if their account is revoked. Advise user to contact MDT to resolve issue.”

Q.  Does MDT’s account reference refer to their IRP/IFTA/Permitting accounts or their User ID? 

Response: This refers to the user ID (i.e. - logon credentials).  If MDT has had any issues with a motor carrier on permitting, credentialing, or licensing, MDT needs to have the ability to suspend an account with a message for the motor carrier to contact MDT or to reactivate the account when issues are resolved.

	40.
	
	
	Q.  Is a list of pre-proposal call attendees going to be posted?

Response: No.  However, a list can be emailed upon request by contacting Rick Dorvall @ rickdorvall@mt.gov .

	31. 
	Att E 

Lines 25, 28, 36-44, 53,  54, 94-96, 98, 104

 (No page numbers on spreadsheet)
	Att E R19, R22, R30-38, R47, R48, R88-90, R92, R98
	RFP:  Not quoted as this question applies to multiple responses as noted in the “Section Number” column of this form.

Q.  Does the Montana Interactive payment portal support the shopping cart functions as defined in the RFP? 

Response: The State of Montana payment engine does not currently support using multiple payment options to pay as part of a single transaction.   The State of Montana Payment engine does not support a shopping cart- like format but there are different ways for this to be accomplished.  The ultimate solution will need to be determined with the selected vendor.

	39.
	15
	3.1.2.1
	Q.  Should paragraph 4 in this section referring to costing model include “software and hardware” 

Response: After reviewing and discussing this item, we have concluded the current wording is sufficient.  We believe the vendor who questioned this item had not fully read the RFP.  There is sufficient information throughout the RFP to indicate the approach necessary to fully implement the desired solution.  Any wording change in this introductory section of Section 3 would likely lead to further confusion.  Therefore, we will not make changes to section 3.1.2.1

	32. 
	18
	3.2.1.5.10
	RFP:  “3.2.1.5.10 The proposed solution must not allow sensitive data to be queryable, nor displayed on reports.”

Q.  Please list specific data elements that are considered to be “sensitive data.”

Response: Montana Code Annotation 2-6-501(4) refers to personal (sensitive) information as combinations of:

Last Name with First Name or First Initial

Last Name Social Security Number

Last Name and Tax Identification Number

Last Name and Driver’s License Number

Last Name and Montana Identification Number

Last Name and Tribal Identification Number

Last Name Tribal Enrollment Number

Last Name and Identification Number (issued by any state, District of Columbia, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, Virgin Islands, American Samoa)

Last Name and Credit Card Number (with Security Code)

Last Name and Debt Card (with Access Code or Password)

 http://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/2/6/2-6-501.htm

	33. 
	22
	3.2.4.2.2
	Q. The Offeror must provide information on hourly rates…..

Is this information to be specified here or in the cost proposal only?

Response: Please provide the information in both 3.2.4.2.2, on the cost proposal 5.2.1.3, and in Appendix J.

	34. 
	28
	3.2.6.2.2
	Q. Current web browsers utilized IE 8, IE 10, Chrome and Firefox

Is the State moving to IE11?  

Response: MDT is currently using IE8 and IE10.  However, MDT is in the process of upgrading to IE11.

	35. 
	19
	3.2.1.6.6
	RFP:  “3.2.1.6.6 The proposed solution must exclude all sensitive data from reports as defined in State policy.”

Q.  Please list specific data elements that are considered to be “sensitive data.”

Response: Montana Code Annotation 2-6-501(4) refers to personal (sensitive) information as combinations of:

Last Name with First Name or First Initial

Last Name Social Security Number

Last Name and Tax Identification Number

Last Name and Driver’s License Number

Last Name and Montana Identification Number

Last Name and Tribal Identification Number

Last Name Tribal Enrollment Number

Last Name and Identification Number (issued by any state, District of Columbia, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, Virgin Islands, American Samoa)

Last Name and Credit Card Number (with Security Code)

Last Name and Debt Card (with Access Code or Password)

http://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/2/6/2-6-501.htm

	36. 
	21
	3.2.3.5.5
	RFP:  “3.2.3.5.5 The Offeror must produce on-line, on-demand training videos for applicable portions of the solution for use by the commercial motor carriers.”

Q.  Please define what MDT considers to be “applicable portions of the solution.”

Response: Examples of the types of on-line and on-demand video training MDT would like to make available include logging into the system; changing passwords; completion of any or all IRP, IFTA permit transactions, including printing various forms, invoices, credentials and payments.

	37. 
	6, 15
	1.2 and 3.1.2.1
	RFP:  “1.2 Contract Period:  The contract period is two year(s), beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2016, inclusive …”

“3.1.2.1 Statement of Project Objectives:  Since the MDT’s existing contracted system expires on June 30, 2016, the replacement system outlined in this request for proposal must be in place and fully operational by July 1, 2015 and preferably sooner.”

Q 1.  What actually is the contract period? Section 3.1.2.1 says the systems must be up and fully operational by July 1, 2016 which is in contrast to the dates showing in 1.2.

Response: The contract period is expected to begin around July 1, 2014 and will end no later than June 30, 2016.  A contract renewal for system maintenance will be negotiated for future periods per section 1.2 (Contract Period) of the RFP.

Q 2.  How many years are required to be submitted for pricing in Appendix J?

Response: One year of maintenance beyond the implementation.

	38. 
	36
	5.2.1.2.1
	RFP:  “5.2.1.2.1 Configuration and implementation:  This section should include pricing for the combined functionality of IRP, IFTA, and Permitting.”

Q.  Please confirm that pricing for CVIEW should also be included in the overall pricing provided in Appendix J.  

Response: Yes, CVIEW pricing should be included in the cost for 5.2.1.2.1


State’s Response to Exceptions to RFP 14-2748V Terms and Conditions
1. Page 42 – Appendix B – Contract – Section 9 – Limitation of Liability: (The proposed limit of liability at two times the contract amount creates too much risk for the Contractor. The Contractor’s liability under the contract should be limited to the fees paid by the State to the Contractor from the twelve months preceding any claim. The Contractor requests the modification be made to the clause.) 

“Contractor’s liability for contract damages is limited to direct damages and shall not exceed the fees paid by the State of Montana to the Contractor in the preceding twelve (12) months given rise to such claim.”

Response to 1:  The State will not agree to the requested change.

2. Page 50 – Appendix B – Contract – Section 21.1 – Termination for Cause:  (The Contractor would like to have a cure period to correct any default, breach or problem that may occur under the contract prior to the State terminating the contract for cause.  The Contractor requests that the following language be added to the contract.) 

Add: after the Contractor fails to cure such failure within 30 days after receiving notice of such failure from the State.

Response to 2: State can agree to the requested change by the following amendments to 21.1 and 21.3:

21.1  Termination for Cause with Notice to Cure Requirment by State.  The State may, by written notice to Contractor, terminate this contract in whole or in part for Contractor’s failure to materially perform any of the services, duties, terms or conditions contained in this contract after giving the Contractor written notice of the failure. The written notice must demand performance of the stated failure within a specified period of time of not less than 30 days.  If the demanded performance is not completed within the specified period, the termination is effective at the end of the specified period.

21.3  Termination for Cause with Notice to Cure Requirement by Contractor.  Contractor may terminate this contract for the State’s failure to perform any of its duties under this contract after giving the State written notice of the failure.  The written notice must demand performance of the stated failure within a specified period of time of not less than 30 days.  If the demanded performance is not completed within the specified period, the termination is effective at the end of the specified period.

3. Page 51 – Appendix B – Contract – Section 22.3 – Actions in Event of Breach:  (The Contractor would like to be formally noticed and have a cure period to correct any event of a breach.  The Contractor specifically requests the following language be added under the first bullet point after “section 21”). 

“…after giving the Contractor written notice of the stated failure.  The written notice must demand compliance or remedy of the failure within a minimum time period of 30 days.” 

Response to 3: No changes are necessary to Section 22.3 with the changes to 21.1 and 21.3 made above.

4. The following indemnification obligation is very broad. The Contractor will accept the obligation to the extent it, including its employees, subcontractors or agents, caused the bodily or personal injury, death, or damage to property.   Contractor should not be responsible to the extent any damages were caused by the State. The Contractor specifically requests the following modification to the language: 

8.
HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION
Contractor agrees to protect, defend, and save the State, its elected and appointed officials, agents, and employees, while acting within the scope of their duties as such, harmless from and against all claims, demands, causes of action of any kind or character, including the cost of defense thereof, arising in favor of Contractor's employees or third parties on account of bodily or personal injuries, death, or damage to property arising out of services performed or omissions of services to the extent or in any way resulting from the acts or omissions of Contractor and/or its agents, employees, representatives, assigns, subcontractors, except the sole negligence of the State, under this agreement.  Contractor shall not be liable under this Section to the extent any damages are caused by the State.

Response to 4: State will not agree to the requested change.
5.  The Contractor is providing software that is owned by a subcontractor and intends to utilize the services of that subcontractor in customizing the software for the State’s needs.  The subcontractor intends to maintain ownership of all materials created for the use by multiple clients.  All materials created by either Contractor or its subcontractor for the sole use of the State shall become the property of the State. The Contractor suggests the following modifications to Section 17 to clarify: 

17.
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY/OWNERSHIP
17.1  Mutual Use.  Contractor shall make available to the State, on a royalty-free, non-exclusive basis, all patent and other legal rights in or to inventions first conceived and reduced to practice for the sole use of the State, or created for the sole use of the State in whole or in part under this contract, if such availability is necessary for the State to receive the benefits of this contract.  Unless otherwise specified in a statement of work, both parties shall have a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use copyrightable property created for the sole use of the State under this contract.  This mutual right includes (i) all deliverables and other materials, products, modifications that Contractor has developed or prepared for the sole use of the State under this contract; (ii) any program code, or site- related program code that Contractor has created, developed, or prepared for the sole use of the State under or primarily in support of the performance of its specific obligations under this contract; and (iii) manuals, training materials, and documentation created for the sole use of the State.  All information described in (i), (ii), and (iii) is collectively called the "Work Product".
17.2  Title and Ownership Rights.  The State retains title to and all ownership rights in all data and content, including but not limited to multimedia or images (graphics, audio, and video), text, and the like provided by the State (the "Content"), but grants Contractor the right to access and use Content for the purpose of complying with its obligations under this contract and any applicable statement of work.  

17.3  Ownership of Work Product.  Contractor shall execute any documents or take any other actions as may reasonably be necessary, or as the State may reasonably request, to perfect the State's ownership of any Work Product.

17.4  Copy of Work Product.  Contractor shall, at no cost to the State, deliver to the State, upon the State's request during the term of this contract or at its expiration or termination, a current copy of all Work Product in the form and on the media in use as of the date of the State's request, or such expiration or termination.
17.5  Ownership of Contractor Pre-Existing Materials.  Contractor or its subcontractor shall retains ownership of all literary or other works of authorship (such as software programs and code, documentation, reports, and similar works), information, data, intellectual property, techniques, subroutines, algorithms, methods or related rights and derivatives  that Contractor or its subcontractor owns at the time this contract is executed, that is otherwise developed or acquired for use by multiple clients during this contract, or that is otherwise developed or acquired independent of this contract and employed by Contractor or its subcontractor  in connection with the services provided to the State (the "Contractor Pre-existing Materials").  Contractor Pre-existing Materials are not Work Product.  Contractor shall provide full disclosure of any Contractor Pre-Existing Materials to the State before its use and to prove its ownership.  If, however,  Contractor fails to disclose to the State such Contractor Pre-Existing Materials, Contractor shall grant the State a nonexclusive, worldwide, paid-up license to use any Contractor Pre-Existing Materials embedded in the Work Product to the extent such Contractor Pre-Existing Materials are necessary for the State to receive the intended benefit under this contract.  Such license shall remain in effect for so long as such Pre-Existing Materials remain embedded in the Work Product.  Except as otherwise provided for in Section 17.3 or as may be expressly agreed in any statement of work, Contractor shall retain title to and ownership of any hardware it provides under this contract.

Response to 5:  State will not agree to the requested changes.

6. The Contractor understands and is willing to accept responsibility for infringement it or its subcontractors cause under this Contract; however, the Contractor expects the State to be responsible for infringement it causes.  With that in mind, the Contractor proposes the addition of the following section: 

18.
PATENT AND COPYRIGHT PROTECTION

18.1  Third-Party Claim.  If a third party makes a claim against the State that the products furnished under this contract infringe upon or violate any patent or copyright, the State shall promptly notify Contractor.  Contractor shall defend such claim in the State's name or its own name, as appropriate, but at Contractor's expense.  Contractor shall indemnify the State against all costs, damages, attorney fees, and all other costs and expenses of litigation that accrue as a result of such claim.  If the State reasonably concludes that its interests are not being properly protected, or if principles of governmental or public law are involved, it may enter any action.  

18.2  Product Subject of Claim.  If any product furnished is likely to or does become the subject of a claim of infringement of a patent or copyright, then Contractor may, at its option, procure for the State the right to continue using the alleged infringing product, or modify the product so that it becomes non-infringing.  If none of the above options can be accomplished, or if the use of such product by the State shall be prevented by injunction, the State will determine whether the contract has been breached.

18.3
Claims for Which Contractor is Not Responsible. The Contractor has no obligation regarding any claim based on any of the following except where the Contractor has agreed in writing, either separately or within this contract, to such use that is the basis of the claim:

a.
anything the State provided which is incorporated into a Work Product except:

i.
where the Contractor knew (and the State did not know) such thing was infringing at the time of its incorporation into a Work Product but failed to advise the State; or

ii.
where the claim would have been brought without such incorporation;

b.
the State's modification of a Work Product furnished under this contract;

c.
the use of a Work Product in a manner that could not be reasonably contemplated within the agreed upon scope of the applicable project; or

d.
infringement by non-Contractor Work Product alone.

Response to 6: State will agree to the changes as proposed.
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